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"The town of Burlington nestling within a fertile valley
between Lake Ontario and the Niagara Escarpment has become a

thriving municipality, rural enough to retain its natural beauty,
and urban enough to provide those things of commerce and trade
which supply the comforts of life, It is a suburban settlement

of beautiful homes and gardens, The adjoining farm lands are

now in a transition period of subdivision., Surveys are mushrooming
into real estate developments, while the finger of residential,

commercial and industrial planning is pointing straight to a bright
future",

The Hamilton Spectator

March 17, 1951.



An gerial photograprh of Burlington, looking north=-east,

showing some of the rich agricultursl land soon to be absorbed by
residential subdivisions,

Present boundary of Burlington (1957).
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CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

The town of Burlington, located at the southwestern corner of
Lake Ontar16 (see Figure 1), has for the past fifteen years been growing
at a startling rate., Startling, for in this brief period of time the
population has roughly tripled, Noted just a few years ago for its farms
and orchards, the town has in recent years become a beehive of residential,
commercial and industrial activity. What factors have been responsible for
this transition? How has it taken place? How have these factors affected
the pattern of man's life in Burlington? It is the purpose of the follow=
ing chapters to examine and to answer these questions,

In Chapter 11, the physical setting of Burlington is analyzed.

An attempt is made to describe the various elements of the natural environ-
ment which have made it possible for both agricultursl and urban interests
to thrive in the town. In recent years, because of changing economic
forces, it has become more profitable to use land for residential, industr-
ial and commercial development than for agriculture, _

The process of evolution, which has brought about this transition
from ruralism to urbanism in Burlington, is traced ir an account of the
historical development of the community., At first, grain growing was an
important aspect of the town's economic activity. This was followed by
lumbering and dairying and, in more recent times, by fruit and truck
farming., Under these influences Burlington's growth and expansion were
limited, After 1900, however, the rapid industrialization of Southern

Ontario threatened the existence of agriculture in some places. For a
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time, Burlington farm interests were able to cope with this outside
interference and even benefited from its existence by selling large
quantities of fruit and vegetables to growing industrial cities, such
as Hamilton and Toronto.
In Chapter 1V, on land use and functions, emphasis is placed
upon the extensive residential, commercisl and industrial development
of Burlington, .Since 1920, the Burlington area has been rapidly urban-
ized and'agriculture has been almost completely expelled from the town.
This transition has had a marked effect upon the structure of the
Burlington economy. In the face of widespread residential development,
the commercial facilities of the town have been greatly extended in order
to provide more diversification, Industrial expansion has been one of
the most pronounced features of this transition. Located on the major
rail and road routes of the Toronto-Niagara industrial corridor, and
serving as an important transportational hub for southwestern Ontario,
Burlington provides a good setting for industrial location, (See Figure 2.)
Burlington's cultural geography has also been affected by
recent growth, The rapid increase of Burlington's population has
placed a great strain upon the existing institutional and public facilities
of the town., Fortunately, the community is autonomous, supplying its
own utilities, and has been able to cope with the increased demands,
Everywhere water, sewerage and road facilities have been improved and
' extended, New schools and churches have been built and old ones enlarged
with an eye to meeting not only today's demands, but those of the future
also,

Chapter V1 is devoted to a study of the Hamilton-Burlington
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relationship, Many of the changes which have taken place in Burlington
in recent years, have stemmed directly from the association which has
for long years existed between the two communities, The rapid growth
of residential development in Burlington has been largely the result
of an influx of Hemilton workers seeking suburban living conditions.
Extensive competition from Hamilton stores has been one of the major
reasons for the modernization and increased diversification of Burlington's
commercial district, Many industries have located in Burlington because
of the proximity to Hamilton, The city provides not only an important
market for Burlington's’manufactured goods but also an abundant supply
of labour for the town's industries.

Chapters V11 and V11l are devoted to a stufy of the Burlington
Geographical Region and two transitional areas closely associated with it,
Burlington lies in a nodal region;, identified in terms of economic
geography, consisting of a nodel, Burlington, and the surrounding area,
called en umlandz. A careful study of Figures 19 and 20, on page 94,
will show that the node of this geographical region coincides fairly

l. A nodgl region is a tract of territory having a distinctive commercial

and transportational structure, in that it consists of an urban focus or

node, upon which the trade and traffic of a tributary area converge., A

nodal region is therefore identified primarily on the basis of circulation”,
(From perscnal communication with H. R. Thompson, See also P, E., James,
American Geography:Inventory & Prospect, pp. 40, 41, Syracuse University, 1954.)

2. The umland of a town, according to Griffith Tayler, (Urban Geocgraphy,
London, 19495, is "that portion of the surrounding country which is linked
culturally with the town as a centre, There are, of course, many such links,
end in generasl the larger the town the more diverse the links", While C,
Harris has defined twelve such links in his study of Salt Lake City

(Salt Lake City, A Regional Capitgl, University of Chicago, 1940), no
attempt has been made in this study to be so precise.

The writer is aware that the term umland is both ugly and con-
troversiel but it meets the present need closely and will be used carefully.
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closely with the January 1, 1957 administrative boundaries of Burlington,
| The umland coincidés fairly closely with the area to be annexed by
Purlington on Januery 1, 1958 with the exception that the northern part
of Nelson Township, to be annexed at the same time, lies outside the
geographical region of Burlington. (See Figures 19 and 20.) Although
a section of Chapter VIII is devoted to a study of northern Nelsecn
Township, much less attention will be paid to this territory than to
that which lies within the geographical region proper. It may be noticed
that the Burlington Geographical Region extends only westwards, northwards
and eastwards of the town, To the south there lies the City of Hamilton,
which abruptly truncates Burlington's influence in that direction. There
is, however, a narrow strip of land, namely the Burlington Bar (commonly
referred to as Burlington Beach or the Beach Strip), in which the economic
pulls of HEamilton and Burlington overlap. This area will be referred to
as the Beach Strip Transition Area. In contrast to the term "Burlington
Region", the terms "Burlington area" and "Burlington district", which
recur freqﬁently throughout the following pages, are not intended to
have any definite territoriel significance.

This then is the study of an urban community in transition. It
entails an investigation of the physical geography of the community; of
the past and present economic, social and cultural conditions within the
community; of the relationship between the community and a large neighbour-
ing industrisl city; and of a geographical region and two adjacent areas

which will be referred to as its appendages.



CHAPTER 11

THE PHYSICAL SETTING

The town of Burlington is situated on a sandy lake plain just
northeast of the mouth of the old preglacial Dundas Valley, in the extreme
southwestern corner of Nelson Township, northeast of Hamilton, On even
terrain, backed by the Niagars Escarpment, to the northwest, and fronted
by Lake Ontario, to the southeast (see Figure 3) the town enjoys a site
which in the past proved favourable for agriculture and which today is
proving favoursble for urban development, From the standpoint of situation,
the town is strategically located at the point of convergence of the
Niagars Escarpment, the Burlington Beach Strip and the Iroquois Plain ==
natural features which strongly influence the transportational pattern of
Southern Ontario, The significance of these latter statements Becomes
more evident when one studies the physiogrephy and geology, the climate,
the soils and the vegetation of the Burlington area., Let us, therefore,

turn our attention to a study of these aspects of the physical enviromment.

PHYSIOGRAPHY AND GEOLOGY

The physical features of the Bﬁrlington area have resulted
from glaciation, especially that phase of glacial history associated
with the Wisconsin Glacier and its recession. A brief study of this
recession will help to explain the origin of the natural landscape of
the Burlington area.

The Wisconsin Glacier covered all of Ontario in Pleistocene
time, and extended well into southern Ohio, Not until it had melted

back about 150 miles, uncovering nearly all of Ohio, was the first land
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in Southern Ontario uncovered, The Wisconsin ice sheet split into two
distinct lobes, (See Figure 4.) To the northwest there was the Huron-
Georgian Bay - Kawartha ice lobe and, to the southeast, the Ontario-Erie
ice lobel. At first these two lobes met just south of London. (See
Figure 4). Both lobes began to retreat slowly, layirg bare more and more
of Southern Ontario. As the recession continued the artistry of the ice
shapéd the topography of Southern Ontario, In some areas moraines were
uncovered while in others, drumlins were shaped and left to stand as mute
testimony of the imposing glacial processes. Spillways, kames, eskers
and other surface features were formed by melt water action, associated
with the retreat of the ice sheet., As the ice melted, inland lakes such
as Lake Maumee, Lake Whittlesey and Lake Warren formed, their existence
dependent upon the melt water of the two lobes, When the Ontario-Erie
ice lobe withdrew to the eastern end of the present day Lake Ontario basin,
uncovering the Mohawk Valley at Rome, New York, the great glacial Lake
Iroquois was created. (See Figure 5). Lake Algonquin, occupying the
present basins of Lake Huron and Georgian Bay, was also formed at this
time, These two were much the longest lived of the glacial lakes as is
evident by their strongly developed beaches and bluffsz. The lowland
bordering Lake Ontario (including the Burlington district) was inundated
by the water of Lake Iroquois. When the great dam in the St, Lawrence
Valley withdrew, the water of Lake Iroquois escaped to the ocean through

the Hudson valley. As the water level dropped Lake Iroquois gave way to

1, Chapman & Putnam, The Physiography of Southern Ontariec, p.25, Toronto
2. Jbid., p.33. 1951,
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Lake Ontario, The old Lake Iroquois had occupied the basin of the present
leke although on a much more extensive scale and at the peak of its
existence had been fully 115 feet above the present lake level.

BRasically, the present day surface skin of the Burlington area
owes its existence to Lake Iroquois. (See Appendix A-1,) Chapman and
Putnem in their book, The Physiography of Southern Ontagrio, define the
narrow belt of land along the shore of Lake Ontario, formerly covered by
Lake Iroquois water, as the Iroquois Plain, The Iroquois Plain extends
around the western part of Lake Ontarie, from the Niegara River to the
Trent River, a distance of ninety miles, its width varying from a few
hundred yards to about eight milesl. The town of Burlington is located
near the southwestern end of the Hamilton-Toronto section of the Plain,
The old shoreline of Lake Iroquois is represented by a great gravel bar-
the Iroquois Bar-which separates Cootes Parsdise from Hamilton Harbour
and which more or less parallels the Hamilton Harbour and Lake Ontario
shorelines, just north of Highway No. 2 and the Queer Elizabeth Way.
(See Figure 6.)

In the vicinity of Burlington, several physiographic regions
are apparent, (See Figure 6.) The wave action of Leke Ontario has cut
back into the soft red Queenston shale bed rock, forming low shorecliffs,
These shorecliffs are quite outstanding physical features of the Burlington
shoreline of Lake Ontario, (See Appendix A-2,) It seems strangely

ironical that the same wave action which helped to create the very

1. Chapman and Putnem, The Physiegraphy of Southern Ontario, p. 234
Toronto, 1951.
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"An old Iroquois beach located just southwest
of the Brant Inn, below the Brant Museum,
(see Appendix A-2)

A shorecliff exposed at the foot of
Burlington Court,

(see Appendix A-1)
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impertant Burlington Bar should also be responsible for the destruction
of the Burlington shore. Wave erosion has been checked, however, through
the introduction of concrete and boulder breskwaters along the shoreline,
The keen observer will be able to note several wave cut benches along
the Hamilton Harbour and Lake Ontario shorelines also., (See Appendix A=3,)

Between the lake and the Iroquois gravel ridge lies a well
drained, gently sloping sand plain which varies in width from a half
a mile, in the Willow Cove district, to just under two miles in the
vieinity of»Burlington. The sands are of locustrine origin, They
have been worked and reworked by the water of Lake Iroquois and are
thus fine and medium textured,

North of Burlington, between the sand plain and the Iroquois
gravel ridge, we find a narrow shale plain. Here the shale bedrock is
very close to the surface and the soil cover is extremely thin, The
water of Lake Iroquois washed most of the glacial till back into the
lake forming lake clays.

To the northeast of this shele plain and occupying only a
minor segment of the immediate Burlington ares, may be found a drumlinized
till plein, Here one may find various sized rock fregments, ranging from
fine clay to large boulders. The till plain in the Burlington area is
covered with fine sands and silts, providing the basis for a fertile
sandy loam soil,

Back of the Iroquois gravel ridge, the land rises quite steeply
in the form of the famous Niagaras Escarpment, The face of the Escarpment
is marked by differentially eroded outerops of Lockport Dolomite and

shale, It stands roughly 400 feet above the Iroquois Plain at Aldershot.
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Just northwest of Burlington, the Escarpment alters from its general
east-west direction and assumes a more north-south trend. Immediately
above the Escarpment are found the moraines and spillways of the Waterdown
area,

There are no streams of major importance in the vicinity of
Burlington and the drainage pattern consists of a number of sub=-parallel
streams running down the slopes of the Escarpment, across the Iroquois
Plain, eventually emptying into Hamilton Harbour or Lske Ontario. The
only stream of any size is the Grindstone Creek, which flows down the
Escarpment, through the Waterdown cut, and thence through the Hendrie
Valley into Hamilton Harbour., The spillway of this stream is very
picturesque and provides a wonderful setting for the Royal Botanical
Gardens, At one time, however, it did provide an obstacle to travel
between Hamilton and Burlington, Two small streams pass through the
town proper and empty into Leke Ontario. They are Allen Creek, the more
westerly of the two, and Rambo Creek, Most of the stream valleys in
the Burlington area are deep indicating that the process of down=cutting
has been going on since Lake Iroquois began to shrink,

The Iroquois Plain is of great geographical significance,

Due to its gentle slopes, it has always been an important transportational
corridor., (See Figure ?.) The Iroquois Bar, separating Cootes Parasdise
from Hamilton Harbour, provides a natural bridge for rail and road
transport. The Burlington Bar (commonly called the Burlington Beach
Strip) has for many years offered a natural by-pass for traffic wishing

to avoid the congestion of downtown Hamilton, and has also provided an
important recreational playground for distriet citizens, The Iroquois

gravel ridge is a source of road and building materiels, and the shale
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bedrock has provided the basis for tile making in the area. The even
sandy terrain has made it possible to instal and extend urban subdivisions,
water and sewerage facilities as well as roads. Burlington's proximity
to the lake provides both a beautiful setting for residential development
and an abundance of water for doméstic and industrial purposes. The
protection offered by the Escarpment has been of grest importance in
making Burlington so rich from an agricultural standpoint., In all these

ways Burlington's setting is most favourable.

CLIMATE
(See Appendix A-4)

The climate of the Burlington area is temperate. The coldest
month is February, with a mean temperature of 22,5°F., and the warmest
month is July, with a mean temperature of 71,0°F, (See Figure 8.,) The
growing season is 203 days in length, The whole arez belongs to the
humid continental climate having cool summers with abundant rainfall in
all seasonsl. Figure 9 indicates that the distribution of precipitation
is remarkably uniform throughout the year. There is no summer maximum
as is found at many "continental' stations, The average annual rainfall
is 30.93 inches and the months of June, July and August receive an average
total rainfall of 8,05 inches, (See Figure 9.) The average annual snowfall
totals 58.2 inches representing only 5-6 inches of weter., As far as wind
direction is concerned, there is a strong predominance of west and south-
west winds especially in winter, which is partly matched by a "tertiary
meximum" from the northeast. The only wind direction of negligible

1, D. F, Putnsm, The Climate of Southern Ontario: (Scientific Agriculture),
pp. 401 - 446, otta"a, 1938.
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importance is the southeastl.

In the study of climate it should always be remembered that

there are many climatic controls such as physiography, water bodies,

latitude, altitude, prevailing winds, air masses, fronts and storms.

The Niagara Escarpment for example, hes a great influence on the climate

of Burlington, "It tends to deflect winds, to cause temperature contrasis

between its crest and foot, to induce condensation when humid air is

forced to rise over it, and hence to cause the development of clouds,

fog and precipitation. Conversely, air moving down over the Escarpment

tends to be warmed adisbatically, leading to evaporation rather than

condensation"?, Lake Ontario tends to exert an ameliorating influence

in summer and winter and the frost free period extends from early Hay

often to late October, an average of 153 daysB. Burlington's climate

is also influenced by cyclonic storms which are more pronounced in the

winter and which induce great cheangeability and variability in the

weather,

Of all the reasons responsible for the success of agriculture

in the Burlington area, perhaps none is more important than climate,

Agriculture has benefited from the long growing season, the plentiful

supply of moistureA, the gentle winds, the protection from late frost

1.
3e
be

H. R. Thompson, The Climgte of Hamilton, Ontario, p. 11, Hamilton 1956,
Ibid. p. 2, 3.

D. F. Putnam, The Climate of Southern Ontario: (Scientific Agriculture),
ppP. 401 = 446, Ottawa, 1938,

Though there is a moisture deficiency in summer, irrigation is widely
practised compensating for the deficiency,
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in the spring and from early frost in the fall, and the abundance of
sunshine in the growing season, The warm summers and invigorating winters
place relatively few hardships upon the inhabitants of the area, meking

all seasons pleasant for working and playing.

SOILS

The soils of the Burlington area were mapped many years ago
and placed in the Fox Sandy Loan Series. (See Appendix A-5.) The soils
of this series in the Burlington area lie between the Iroquois gravel
ridge and the shorelines of Hamilton Harbour and Lake Ontario. They are
sandy and well drained, being derived from a parent material consisting
of fine sandy locustrine deposits overlying till, In studying a typical
profile of this series, one sees a light brown and yellow sandy loam over
a reddish brown clay sand, Underlying this one finds stratified sand and
silt, The soil is relatively stone free and the profile is fairly deep =
the bottom of the B horizon is about thirty inches down.

The soils on the gravel ridge and on the steeper slopes of the
Escarpment, as one might suspect, are very thin, The upper horizons of the
soil are low in organic matter., This factor combined with low inherent
fertility, makes utilization of the soil difficult. A great deal of time
must be spent in looking after the soil in order to maintain fertility and
prevent what pedolégists call the "burning out" of the soil., Due to the open
structure of the sandy soil, the percolation of water is very rapid and the
soils dry out quickly, If the Burlington district farmer is to acquire
meximum ylelds then irrigation must be practised,

The soils of the Burlington area have throvgh hard and continuous
work been made exceptionally productive, The widespreed use of manures,

fertilizers and green crops along with the use of extensive irrigation schemes
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have made the Burlington area an excellent truck farming and fruit growing
distriect.

From a cultural point of view, the sandy soils have made it
reletively easy to exeavate foundations, build roads and instal pipe lines.
The soils because of their open structure, dry out rapidly in the spring
time and it is an established fact that Burlington residents are amongst
the first in the Hamilton area to get out and rehabilitate their lawns
and gardens at the conclusion of winter., The Burlington Golf Club has
perhaps the longest season of any of the local golf clubs, because of the
well drained sandy soils which make possible an early spring start and a

late fall finish,

VEGETATION

At one time the Burlington area was covered with a dense
deciduous forest growth, The associations of this deciduous forest were
dominated by broad leaved trees such as blue ash, black walnut and white
oak, Coniferous species were poorly represented with white pine being the
most dominant, Hemlocks were scattered throughout the district and red
juniper was commonly found on the poorer gravelly sitesl.

As the area is now closely settled, the forest cover has been
greatly reduced and tree growth is found only on surfaces unsuitable for
agriculture or urban development, or in residential areas where the shade,
beauty and protection of a woodland cover is desired.

Vegetation in the Burlington district is greatly influenced by

soil and relief, On the heavier clay soils, large stards of white oak and

1., W.E.D. Halliday, A Forest Clasgificgtion For Canada, p. 28, Ottawa, 1937,
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red oak are found, Flowering dogwood and sumac are very common on the
gravel ridges, White ash are found in the drier soils while black ash,
elms and silver maples tend to congregate in the stream valleys where there
is an abundance of moisture., There tends to be a general scarcity of all
varieties of the maple tree and the number of beech trees is also relatively
small, The white pine, which was attacked in the middle 1800's by the town's
lumber interests, is another tree which can be found only in limited numbers,

While the forest cover has been largely taken off, the remaining
treés are still important to the life and beauty of the Burlington community.
The woodland growth of the Hendrie Valley provides the natural framework
around which the idea of the Royal Botanical Gardens was conceived and
developed, The beautiful homes in the newer subdivisions are made even more
beautiful and valuable if surrounded by a wooded enviromment, A picturesque
backdrop is provided for the town by the forested slopes of the Escarpment

which, in the fall of the year, are ablaze with colour,

SUMMARY

In summary the following may be said about Burlington's physical
setting, From the standpoint of the physiography and geology of the area,
the Iroquois Plain, through its even terrain has proven to be adaptable for
agricultural and urban uses, It serves as an excellent corridor for rail
and road routes and provides many raw materials, such as sand, gravel and
clay, for local industry, ‘

Climatically speaking, Burlington enjoys the benefits of a tem-
perate climate, Blessed with a long growing season, warm summer days, an
sbundance of sunshine, and freedom from late-frosts in the spring and early

frosts in the fall, agriculture has prospered in the area. While there is
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a moisture deficiency in July, irrigation, practised by most farmers, ensures
an sbundance of moisture for crop growth.

The sandy soils, though having a low inherent fertility and
though being rather easily "burnt out", have been made extremely productive
through the use of artificial fertilizers, manures and green crops, From the
standpoint of urban development, the sandy soils facilitate excavation of
foundations, the instalation of pipe lines and the building of roads.

The original forest cover, once very important to the economy
of the town, is today greatly reduced in extent. It serves merely as a
decorative feature of the Burlington landscape.

It can be seen, therefore, that the physicel setting offers few
limitations and many benefits to human settlement and ectivity in the

Burlington area.



CHAPTER 111

IHE HISTORTICAL DEVELOPMENT OF BURLINGTON

The modern and progressive municipality of Burlington, as we
know it today is a far cry from the small community of Indian tepees which
huddled together on the present site of the town just over 179 years ago.
There is even little resemblance between the Burlington of 1957 and the
Burlington of 1900 or even of 1920 for that matter, Gone are the flour and
lumber mills, the large farmsteads and the old wharves. Gone are the days
of muddy roads and steamship travel between Hamilton and Burlington. A
new Burlington has evolved. The evolution was at first slow but in recent
years it has been most rapid, A study of this evolution reveals many
factors associated with setting, economic activity and transportation which
have been largely responsible for the changes which have taken place in
Burlington., Let us, therefore, briefly trace this process of evolution
which has transformed Burlington from a rural agricultural garden region
into a fapidly expanding urban community of residential, commercisl and

industrial functions,

EARLY SETTLEMENT: UNTIL 1810

The first people in this part of the country, as elsewhere on
the continent, were of course the Indians. Certain tribes of the Mississauga
moved back and forth across the Burlington Bar according to the direction
in which they were driven by famine or foes.

In 1778 the British Government bestowed a large tract of land
consisting of 3,000 acres at the western end of Lake Ortario upon the great
Indian leader Chief Thayendanegea, better known as Captain Joseph Brant, as

a reward for his services in the British cause, The lend was selected by
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the Indian chieftain himself and on the present site of Burlihgton, the
village of Wellington Square was established, For many years Brant's people
occupied the lands, In 1805 a portion of the land was settled by pioneers
from among the United Empire Loyalists = chiefly from North Carolina - who
crossed the Niagara frontier to build homes in the area. (See Appendix B-1,)

In 1810 the first regular survey of the village was made by Nr,
James Gage, who in that year had purchased from the trustees of the Brant
estate 3384 acres in the "northeast angle of Brant's Block", It was noted
by Mr., Gage that the site of his purchase was exceptionally suitable for
agriculture; and under his guidance the small hamlet of Wellington Square
(in the Brant period a mere assemblage of tepees), was rejuvemated and

extended,

BURLINGTON AS A GRAIN MART AND COMMERCIAL PORT: 1810-1856

During the Gage regime the village increased in territorial size
and population, From 1810 until 1856 the village enjoyed considerable
prosperity as a grain market, One of the first steam driven flour mills
in Upper Canada was established in Wellington Square during this period
and several wharves soon sprang up along the lake front. (See Figure 10,)
More and more land was cleared for the specific purpose of growing cereals,
pr{marily wheat, oats and barley. This was true of the whole lake plain
from Burlington Plain (Aldershot) to Bronte., The cereel business became so
great in the Wellington Square district that all property, save that which
had been sold off in village lots, passed into the hands of Messrs, Torrance

and Company, merchants of Montreal, The Torrance Company set about to organize

1, Atlas of the County of Halton, p. 82, (Walker & Miles), Toronto, 1877.
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the grein business in the area. Grain travelled from Wellington Square to
the communities of Niagara-on-the-Lske and York (Toronto).

During the summer months, the wharves and warehouses of Wellington
Square, Port Nelson and Bronte were kept busy receiving the grain from lines
and lines of wagons, It was a frequent occurrence to see "upwards of 200
teams in a single day delivering their gold producing cargoes"l, to the
warehouses at Wellington Square.

The Burlington district played a very significant role in the War
of 1812, because of its strategic geographical position., During the War it
was common to see British gunboats escaping from the lerger American vessels
by sailing through the natural channel, of the beach strip, between Lake
Ontarioc and Hamilton Harbour. The village served as a very important supply
base for General Brock's British and Canadian troops during the War.

This early period of Burlington's history was a period in which
the village was renowned as one of the major ports in the southwestern end
of Lake Ontario. A road had been built in 1808 linking York with Wellington
Square but, though modern by early nineteenth century standards, it made for
nonetheless, a long and difficult journey between the two communities, It
proved more economical to ship the bulky grain by water transport and thus
very little was carried for any distance by road transport. The village
was for a short period of time an even more important port than Hamilton,

In 1825 the Burlington Canal was begun and completed in 1832 replacing the
natural opening alluded to in the above paragraph. The year 1832 marks the
end of Wellington Square as a major commercial port, for after this date,

vessels found it more convenient to sail to Hamilton with their cargoes.

1. Atlas of the County of Halton, p. 82, (Walker & Miles), Toronmto 1877.



- AR
"LUMBER FEVER": 1856-1870

After the clese of the Crimean War (1856) and consequent decline
in the price of wheat, business in grain materially decreased as did the
price of property in Wellington Square., With the introduction of railways,
in the 1850's, the amount of produce shipped by water rapidly fell off,
Added to this, it has already been pointed out that the building of the
Burlington Canal virtually put an end to Wellington Square's brief dominance
as a commercial port. For these reasons this village, like many others,
fell into an ordinary existence which continued for several years., At the
conclusion of the 1850's, however, the economic activity of the community
rallied under the influence of a boom in the lumber business., In the early
days of the village's existence, the forests of Wellington Square and
district had been cut back with little thought to the economic value of the
fallen treés. While the odd lumber mill had sprung up the backbone of the
economy was, nevertheless, grain, In the late 1850's, however, several new
planing mills were built and the white pine, oak and maple stands of the
TWellington Square area took on economic importéncea

Rusiness prospered until roughly 1870, when, with the almost
complete destruction of the local timber stands the "fever" subsided, The
commercigl fabric of the village, however, had gained new strength during
this period and it was largely through its ability to "weather the storm"
that Wellington Square suffered as lightly as it did,

Manufacturing was but little represented, which is surprising
since the locality was well suited for it even in 1870, Manufacturing interests
consisted of a flour mill, the J. Allen Waggon and Carriage Factory, and
the Crooker Bros, and Company Wire Works,

During this era the ties which Wellington Square had developed
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with the surrounding communities were becoming stronger. This is especially
true in the case of Hamilton., The village was located on the major road
linking Toronto with Hamilton, Between Wellington Square and Hamilton there
were two toll gates, one at Aldershot and one near the entrance of the city.
The roads of the distriet at the time of Confederation (1867) were very
difficult, especially after rain or thaw. Under the poor conditions, the
traveller was often forced to desert the roads in favour of the adjacent fields,
Steamship travel was also important in this period. While Wellington
Square was no longer a commercial port of any significence, passenger traffic
between Hamilton and Toronto, and indeed all the way dewn to Kingston, was
important, Steamships were becoming faster and competition between the
various ships plying the local waters increasingly keen. (See Appendix B-2,)
In 1853 the Hamilton-Toronto line of the Grest Western Railway had
been built just fringing the village, passing through Freeman to the north.
As yet, however, the railway was of little importance to the community.
There was no rail line across the beach strip and, in fact, the wagon road
Traversing the strip was interrupted at the Burlington Canal. Due to the
small amount of traffic, no attempt had been made to construct a bridge over

the Canal, A small ferry transported the travellers from one side to the other.

éffi BURLINGTON, "THE GARDEN OF CANADA": 1870-1930
//
In 1870, the village of Wellington Square, upon petition, became

the village of Burlington., The community along with the surrounding area
was at this time gaining a widespread reputation for its dairy herds and for
its large plantation farms and gardens., (See Appendix B-3,) The village

had enjoyed considerable prosperity and prestige as a farming area prior to
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1870 but it was not until this period that the full agricultural potential
of the district was realized., The variety and quality of Burlington's
horticultural products were recognized in all markets, Melons and tomatoes
were the most renowned products of the agriculturally rich and climatically
favourable Burlington area. The productivity of the scil, the presence of
-abundant and rapid transport (now becoming more essential and consequently
more @vailable), the long growing season, the sbundance of moisture, the
warm summer days and especially the energy and hard work exhibited by local
growers - all helped to turn the Burlington area into & thriving agricultural
region,

The Burlington fruit growers were pioneers in the export of
perishable fruits in cold storage, thus attracting the attention of
horticulturists in California, southern France and Britain., In 1889 the
Burlington Fruit Growers Association was organized and in the same yesr the
Burlington Horticultural Association, their joint purpose being to establish
better fruit farms in the district., In 1896 the Burlington Fruit Experiment
Station was established under the joint control of the Ontario Agricultural
College and the Ontario Fruit Growers Association, The aim of the station
was to determine the varieties of fruit best adapted tc the soil and climate
of the area., All this organizing, planning and experimentation was reflected
in the size and prosperity of the local farms; farms which were as large and
as wealthy as any to be found in Ontario.

In 1873 Burlington, with a population of roughly 1,000 was becoming
quite popular as a summer vacation village., Its situation from a mercantile
point of view was good and the municipality had a small but thriving commercial

coleny supplying the local farms, In 1873 and up until the early 1900's,
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however, industry was virtually non-esistent in the Burlington community,
the emphasis being upon agriculture and the rural life,

This new era of agricultural productivity was accompanied by a
rapid period of rail and road development - elements of transportation so
necessary for the distribution of agricultural produce to their markets,

In 1870 a large swing bridge was built across the Burlington Canal and in
1875 Burlington became still more closely linked with Eamilton when a branch
of the Hamilton and North Western Railway was built across the beach strip.
A railway station was built near the present site of the Brant Museum, where
stood the old Brant House (after 1914 the Brant Hospitel). The village by
1875 was thus serviced by two rail lines - the Great Western, soon to become
part of the Grand Trunk Railway System, and the Hamilton and Northwestern
Railway. (See Figure 11.) In 1896 a Radial Linel transportation system

was built across the beach strip from Hamilton to Burlington., In 1904 the
Radial was extended to Oakville, but this section never paid and was abandoned
in 1926, 1In 1915 the Hamilton and Toronto Cement Highway was finished
(Highway No, 2.) and in 1923 the road along the beach strip was paved. In
1919 a new bridge was erected across the Canal, thereby linking Burlington
with another paved Provincial Highway, to Niagara Falls and Buffalo, forging
a further link with other cities and towns of the Province,

The importance of these new rail and road facilities to the wealth
and economic stability of Burlington cannot be over emphasized, Without
them the perishable farm produce of the Burlington community could never

have reached the markets of Southern Ontario. (See Appendix B-4.)

l. The Radial Line was an electric railway system. Besides the line from
Hamilton to Burlington and Qakville, there were also lines from Hamilton
to Stoney Creek, Brantford and Dundas,
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After 1921 agricultural activity in the Burlington district
entered a new phase, There was from this date a trend towards smaller
holdings and an increase in the production of market gerden crops - egg
plants, celery, tomatoes, lettuce, asparagus, etc, Fruit farms remained ag-
riculturally important but the nmumber of livestock gradually declined, The
increased demand for fruit and vegetables, created by & rapid growth of
urban settlement in Hemilton and Toronto, forced mixed farming into the
background, Mixed farming tended to move father eastwards and northwards.
There was also an increased trend toward agricultural specialization both
in growing and in marketing, Prior to 1921 the products of the Burlington
district were marketed through brokers in various cities, through the
Hamilton market and through individual buyers, In 1921 an effort was made
to eliminate the middlemen and to secure a greater return for the grower
without an increase in the consumer price, Therefore, a co-operative market-
ing orgenization was formed in the Burlington area. In 1922 the members of
this organization had a total of 765 acres under fruit and vegetable
cultivation, (See Appendix B-5.)

After 1900, urbanism made its first appearance on the Burlington
scene, The Radial and railway lines, the new paved highways, the coming
of the car, and after 1921 the operation of buses between Hamilton: and
Burlington, all helped to establish a vogue of suburban living by city workers.

In 1914 Burlington advanced a further step municipally when its
status changed from that of village to that of town. The town had in the
past been noted as a popular summer retreat for Hamiltonians but after 1910
many of the city's ﬁore prosperous residents moved to Burlington to take up
permanent residence in spacious homes along the lake shore or along the quiet

shady streets of the community,
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With the innovation of suburban living, the population began to
show a marked increase and by 1927 Burlington had a population of roughly
3,000 people., In order to make the town a better place in which to live
many local improvements were made. A waterworks was built in 1909 and in
1914 the first sewage and storm conduits were laid. The coal oil lamps,
which had been used to light the streets since 1892, were replaced in 1900
by electric street lights and by 1920 the town had good telephone and postal
services, The paving of streets was begun in 1922, Or. the lake front a
long and massive revetment wall was built by the Federal Govermment, with a
further addition being added at the foot of Brant Street in 1926, Lake storms
had entirely destroyed the old wharves which, though seldom used after 1890,
had stood as reminders of another day. The improvements in rail and road
transportation routes had virtually put an end to steamship travel between
Burlington and Hamilton.

Perhaps one of the most significant changes to take place in the
Burlington landscape after 1900 was that associated with the growth of
industry. By 1930 the following industries were located in the town: the
Niagara Brand Spray Company, the Vera Chemical Company, the Hyslop Canning
Company, the Glover Basket Company, the Dominion Canning Company, Tuck's
Milling Company, the Nicholson Lumber Company and the Hercules Powder Company.
These industries provided the nuclei around which future industrial expansion

would take place,

BURLINGTON SINCE 1930: AN EXAMPLE OF URBAN GROWTH

There have been many significant changes in Burlington since 1930.
While the town suffered during the depression of 1929-1936, like most towns

of its size, the trend towards urban development, started just after the turn
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of the twentieth century, could not be thwarted. With the completion of the
Queen Elizabeth Way in 1939 and with the widening and improving of existing
highways, to say nothing of better railway service, the flow of people and
capital into Burlington has been very great, Gone are the days of plantation
farming, Warket gardening while still prominent throughout the Burlington
district is nonetheless rapidly declining, New subdivisions have sprung up
where once stood proud old farms, Industry has rapidly moved into the area
to avail itself of the excellent power, transportation, market and labour
facilities which Burlington has to offer. The commercial district has been
extended and modernized in order to keep pace with a constantly increasing
population,

On January 1, 1958, a new era in Burlington's history will commence
when the annexation of Nelson Township and East Flamborough Township, below
the escarpment, becomes effective, The town on this dete will have a total
land area of 55,000 acres and, supporting 32,000 people, will be ranked as
Ontario's eighteenth municipality, in population, This annexation reflects
the ever increasing influence of urbanism in the Burlington area and represents

the enthusiasm and optimism of a rapidly growing community.

SUMMARY

A study of the historical development of Burlington is a study of
man's ability to take advantage of the benefits which his natural enviromment
has to offer, The early settlers combined the favourable elements of the
natural environment with their own resourcefulness to turn Burlington into
an important agricultural region., Prior to 1856, grair growing was the
dominant form of agricultural activity practised in the Burlington area. In

succeeding generations, however, dairying, fruit farming and market gardening
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stepped in to fill the gap left in the local economy when grain growing
subsided, Giving further proof of their resourcefulness, the Burlington
settlers, when hit by depression in 1856, were quick to take advantage of
the locel forest resources and a thriving lumber industry was established,
The benefits of being located so strategically with respect to transportation
facilities and markets has always been apparent. The water, road and rail
routes of the area have made it possible to speed to market the agricultural
products of the community., The proximity to Hamilton and Toronto has always
ensured a large local market for Burlington produce.

The expansion of Burlington in both population and area has, until
recent years, been very gradual, Industrial and commercial activity on a
large scale were slow to develop. Early industry was sssocisted primarily
with agriculture and as the population was relatively sparse, there was
little commercial development in the town.

In the first two decades of the twentieth century, as transport-
ation methods improved and as the trend towards suburben living became more
popular, the Burlington community began to show a marked increase in population.

New.industries have risen within the last ten years to stand beside
the older industries of the town., The expanded commercial needs of the
community are now being met by newer and larger stores, Municipal facilities
are being increased to keep pace with residential expansion. In all the
excitement of building and development the large orchards and productive fields
are fast disappearing, The locel farmers are finding it difficult to compete
against the powerful interests of industrial, commercial and residential
development, Ironical as it may seem it appears that many features of the
Burlington setting, once so beneficial to agriculture, are today proving

themselves to be even more beneficial to the forces of urbanism,



CHAPTER 1V

THE RESIDENCES, COMVERCTAL ESTABLISHEENTS AND

INDUSTRIES OF BURLINGTON, THE REGIONAL NODEl,

Over the past 179 years, the land of Burlington has become
differentiated areally and functionally. The land use pattern of the town
is, of éourse, directly related to the functional pattern, Burlington's
three major functions, the residential, the commercial and the industrial,
are all in their own ways, major users of land,

With these assertions in mdmd, let us turn our attention to a
study of the town's residences, commercigl establishments and industries,
In the section on residences, attention will be directed to ﬁ study of
residential function, residential land use, and residential home types and
their distribution. In the section deéling with commercial esteblishments,
not only will Burlington's commercial function and land use be discussed,
but also the town's retail trade pattern, In the section on industries,

a discussion of the industriel function and land use will be linked with an

investigation of the town's fourteen industries. This will be followed

by a description of the other ways in which the town's land is used. In

conclusion a brief discussion of Burlington's zoning policy will be undertaken.
RESIDENCES

The Residential Function

An examination of Figure 12 reveals that more land in Burlington
is devoted to residential use than to anv other. Thus it can be seen just
how important the town's residential function is. There has been a great
number of new homes built in the town over the past few years, as the follow-

ing figures teken from the Business Year Book (1954-1956) indicates

1., See footnote 1, page 5.
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Homes built in 1953 - 19C
1954 - 177
1955 = 216
For many years now the town has been looked upon as one of the
most attractive residentisl communities in the Hamilton area. Its pleasant
rursl atmosphere and proximity to Hamilton have been instrumental in meking
it one of that city's major residential suburbs. While Burlington's role
as en important Hamilton residential suburb is dealt with more fully in
Chapter V1, it should be mentioned here that for a time the town was exclusive-
ly, from a suburban point of view, the home of many wealthy Hamiltonians.
In recent years, however, an overall rise in the standard of living combined
with improvements in transportational facilities have largely destroyed
this exclusiveness making Burlington the home of not only the wealthy, but
also of those in the lower income brackets, Modern residential subdivisions,
consisting of homes built especially for the commuter, have sprung up on
land once used entirely for egricultursl purposes, These subdivisions include
surveys such as Orchard Park, Maplewood Drive, Somerset Court and Burlington
Heights,
In face of the many demands for land for residential purposes,
the price of property has risen sharply. Land which was worth § 3,000 an
acre for residential use in 1951 is now, in many cases worth from § 6,000
to § 8,000 an acre., A lot having a fifty or sixty foot frontage costs from
$ 60 to § 70 a foot., Lake front property is extremely difficult to obtain
end is worth from § 150 to $ 200 a foot: Future prospects, from a residential
point of view look very encoursging. Vhile the amount of land aveilable
for residential subdivision within the present boundaries of the town is
limited, a new era will open on January 1, 1958 when Nelson Township and

l. These figures were obtained from the W, A, Fli
e Ao ot Real Estate A
Burlington, and represent land values for 1956, e i




=30 =
Aldershot are annexed. The annexation of these two areas will provide ample
room for future residential expansion.
Residential Land Use

Burlington's residential lend use pettern consists basically,
of an older residential core surrounded by zones of newer residential develop-
ment, The older residential core, as one might suspect, is located in the
heart of the town, in the southwestern corner, It is here, in a square borderéd
by Martha Street on the east, Caroline Street on the north, Maple Avenue on
the west, and Water Street on the south, that the old village of Wellington
Square had its beginning, It is in this area that we find the majority of
Burlington's older residences. It should also be noted, however, that there
is a small concentration of older residences in the Freeman area, along the
Queen Eligabeth Way.

The newer residential areas are found north and east of this
older core., There is a concentraztion of newer homes between Caroline Stree®
and Baldﬁin,Street, west of Brant Sﬁreet, and also in the Burlington Heights
Survey, west of Brant Street and south of Grgham's lane,

In Burlington's north-centrel district, in the vicinity of Blairholm
Avenue, Dryncourt Drive and Wellington Avenue, some of the town's newer and
more attractive residential subdivisions may be found, The homes in this
district have been built on land which Burlington acquired from the Bell
farm, in 1947, and from the Blair farm, in 1951, In 1953, 100 acres, in
the vieinity of Maplewood Drive were ammexed and this area of ammexation has
become the site of a recently completed residential subdivision,

New subdivisions have also been established in the south-eastern
portions of Burlington, east of Martha Street, south of New Street and west

of the Guelph Road, Some older residences may be found intermingled with res-
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jdences of more recent construction in the extreme south-eastern corner of
the town along Green Street, Market Street, St. Paul Street, First Street
and the Guelph Road, Many of these older residences stand as remnants of
the old Port Nelson community which was incorporated with Wellington Square,
under the name Burlington, in 1873,

More detailed information concerning Burlington's residential
land use pattern will be given in the following section on Burlington's
residential home types and distribution.

Residential Home Types Distribution

(See Figure 12)

Recognizing the presence of four major home types (see Appendix
C-1), it is possible to trace the distribution of the better, the middle
and the poorer class homes in Burlington,

The Al homes, really mansions, are concentrated in a limited area
along the lake front, south of Water Street and east of Junction Street.
Many new A type homes are also found along Water Street in this narrow belt.
Outside this lake front district, A type homes tend to be more scattered in
distribution, having a limited concentration in the Courtland Place - Dryncourt
Drive area. The occasional single A type home may be found in some of the
newer surveys and, in a few instances, in the older residential areas of
the town,

Second class, or B type housing, is most common in the newer
'subdivisions. Ihe greatest concentration of Bl homes is found in the Orchard
Park Survey and in the general vicinity of Courtland Drive and Wellington
Avenue, This entire area of B1 homes has a definite reminder of the past
in the form of old apple and pear orchards, pl homes are concentrated in

the Maplewood Drive Survey, in the vicinity of Eden Place and Halifax Place
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Typical of Burlington's First Class homes,
(above) One of Burlington's beautiful lake front mansions.
(below) A modern, attractive A type home,




Second class homes characteristic of many
newer subdivisions.
(above) Typical Bl homes.

(below) A small compact B2

home,

of the
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and in the south-eastern section of Burlington west of St. Paul Street,
east of Torrance Crescent, south of New Street and north of Water Street.
The concentration is less homogeneous here as many Bz, ¢! and C? homes are
found in association with the Bl type. The two greatest concentrations of
B? housing are to be found in the Drury Land - Woodward Avenue area, just
north of the sewsge disposal plant and north of Birch Avenue, between Hagar
Avenue and the C.N,R. line, Many B2 homes are also scattered throughout
the eastern and western sections of the town.

The older residential core of the town, in the south-western
corner, is the area of greatest third class concentration, The C type homes
are scattered throughout Burlington and their distribution gives some idea
of where early residential development took place. While homes of this
type tend for the most part to be well looked after, falling into the better
Cl class, there are to be found meny C2 homes also., They are numerous in
the vicinity of Brant Avenue and Clark Street, bordering the railway. Many
of these C° homes, with some renovating, could be elevated into a higher
class, There is a limited concentration of c2 homes at Freeman, along the
Queen Elizabeth Way,

Fourth class homes (D type) are not too numerous in Burlington.
They are located mainly in the older residential core area bordering the
Brant Street commercial district and also along the Guelph Road, Often
they are found on the fringe of a market garden. Here, in most cases, they
represent old farm homes which have been allowed to decay.

The main reason for the general patchy distribution of home types
in Burlington, with the exception of the newer surveys and the older residential

areas, is that residential development has been most irregular, This

irregularity is best displayed along the four main transportation arteries
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Third Class homes,

(above) Typical Gl homes, characteristic of the
older residential cors.

(below) A typical, unattractive, C< home,

e
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Contrasts in Living.
(above) One of Burlington's modern apartment buildings.

(below) A D type home,

—

——
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of the town namely Brant Street, New Street, the Guelph Road and Water
Street. Along these streets it is possible to find every possible sequence
of home types.
The town alsc has an excellent representation of gpartment
buildings. Generelly speaking, they are of recent construction, well

looked after and attractive in appesrence,

COMMERCIAL ESTARLISHMENTS

The Commerciegl Function

One of the most outstanding features of Burlington's overall

growth has been the expansion of its commerciel facilities. Few towns in
Canada today, of Burlington's size, can boast so extensive and so diversified
2 shopping area.

The commerciel distriet of Burlington has not always been so
modern hoﬁever. In 1941 there were only sixty-five stores in the towm,

In 1951 this number had risen to seventy-four, Dy 1956 this number had
increased to 1042. That have been the reasons for this very noticeable
increase in the number of stores in the Burlington community?

One of the main reasons lies in the fact that the rapid increase
in the town's population has led to en increesse in the consumer market.
The complex needs of Burlington residents cannot be met by a few stores,
each selling a genergl line of merchandise, In view of this, existing
commercigl facilities in the town heve found it necessary to expand and

new commercisl facilities have found it favourable to locate in Burlington.

1, Business Year Book (1945 to 1956), published by The Financial Post,
Toronto and Montreal, 1945 to 1956.

2. This figure was arrived at after personal communication with Burlington's
Director of Planning, Mr, R, E. P. Serena,



- 47 -

Another reason for the rapid increase in the town's commercial
activity lies in competition with Hamilton. Competition with Hamilton,
from a commercial standpoint, has always been keen especially within the
past few years. Prior to 1947 Burlington's shopping district was rejected
by many local citizens, Having just arrived from Hamilton, many tended to
look upon the shopping district as "dreb" and "rural", In many respects
they were right, The small Burlington shops could not compete with the
large Hamilton stores. Hamilton merchants handling a wider variety of goods,
buying in larger quentities and catering to a larger market could offer
substantially lower prices than could the merchants of Burlington, With the
rapid growth of the town's population, however, local commercial outlets
found new cause for enthusiesm. This enthusiasm has, in the past few years,
become tangible in the form of better commercial facilities for Burlington.

Perhaps the term diversity more than any other identifies the
reason for the great success enjoyed by the commercial elements in the town
todey. From the standpoint of groceries and foodstuffs, the town is well
supplied with fruit and vegetable, meat and grocery markets. The three main
grocery chain store organizations in Onterio - Deminion, Atlantic and Pacific
and Loblaws - each has a modern supermerket in the town, providing a wide
range of groceries and foodstuffs,

- The town has two hotels, the Coronation House and Sherweed Imn,
both of which are located on Brant Street, These structures are two of the
towm's oldest, Burlington also has a modern motel, the Ascot, located on
Water Street.

On Brant Street there 1s a variety of stores selling a wide range
of men's and boy's wear, dry goods, hardware, electrical appliances, women's

wear, drugs and medical supplies, household furnishings, office and school
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supplies and shoes.,

: Burlington's commercial facilities offer many services to the
local citizen, There are numerous barber shops, hair dressing establishments,
shoe repair storés, restaurants and cleaners. The town has two funeral
homes, two finance company branch offices, six bank”branches, two travel
agencies, an animal hospital, two commercial delivery services, a weekly
newspaper (the Gazette), and two taxi co@panies. The medical and professional
needs of the community are looked after by a great number of doctors, dentists
and lawyers, many of whom work from their own homes,

One of the most noticeable features of Burlington's commercial
development is the very great number of automobile sales agencies, auto
repair shops and gasoline stations to be found, Every major automobile
manufacturer, and even some of the sﬁaller ones - Standard and Volkswagen =
is representéd by at least one agency, as is every major petroleum company.

The town has one dairy (which recently sold out to a Hamilton
firm), two bake shops, a brewers retail store, and a liquor store.

Burlington is fortunate to have many modern specialty shops. These
include three antique shﬁps, a hat shop, two sewing machine centres, a
furrier, a custom tailor, two carpet and drapery shops, a flower shop, a
commerclal photographer, several jewelry and gift shops, a pet store and a
delicatessen store.

One of the most striking and most important additions to the
Burlington shopping district has been the Burlington Plaza. This up-to-date
modern shopping centre represents a new type of commercial development, which,
introduced first in the United States, has in recent years become very popular
throughout Canada, Completed in 1953, the Plaza, with its clean modern

exterior and great variety of stores and products, has been attracting customers



A view of the Central Business District,
lower Brant Street.

The Burlington Plaza on Brant Street.
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from a wide area. The Plaza, however, is not popular with everyone in
Burlington. The merchants on lower Brant Street, in many cases have lost
business since this new commercial enterprise opened.

The Plaza has many advantages over the other sections of
Burlington's shopping district. It is centrally located, easily reached
and provides adequate parking facilities, Also, it is bright and modern
in sppearance and offers extensive shopping facilities in a limited space,
Despite the intensification of competition which the Plaza has brought to
some segments of Burlington's commerciel district it has, nevertheless, been
a great asset to the overall economy of the town,

Commercial Land Use,
(See Figure 12.)

A relatively small portion of Burlington's totel land area is
devoted to commercial use, There is a compact central commercial district
which developed originally in the Lower Brant Street - John Street - Water
Street area. Its growth to the east and west has been restricted by the
pressure of residential land use, In recent years the central commercial
district has pushed northwards up Brant Street, but even in this direction
its growth has been hampered by residential development. The main commercial
district has many modern stores and offers a variety of merchandise, The
newest addition is the Burlington Plaza, It marks the northern limit of
the Brant Street commercial district.

Small pockets of commercisl development are also found at Freeman
(commercial establishments here are rather cheap and shoddy), at New Street
and the Guelph Road, and on Ontario Street at the C,N.,R. crossing. There is
a commercial off-shoot of the Brant Street shopping district along Water
Street, east of Elizabeth Street.
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Burlington's Retail Trade Pattern

A study of Burlington's retail trade pattern gives one a very '
good idea of the extent of the towp's commercial influence, Investigation
discloses (see Appendix C=2) that Burlington's zone of commercial influence
is extensive but not uniformly intensive, Basically, the town's trade
pattern consists of three zones, (See Figure 13.) The boundaries of two
of these zones are very clearly defined, whereas the boundary of the third
one is not too easily determined,

At the heart of the trade area lies a small zone which is
commerclally dominated by Burlington. This zone is referred to as the
Zone of Maximum Commercial Influence, It is a relatively small semi-circular
zone comﬁosed mainly of Burlington and Port Nelson, It is from this area
that Burlington commercial outlets derive the greater portion of their
business, The Burlington Bakery, for example, sells 95% of its goods to
customers in this zone and 98% of the Burlington Shoe Repair business is
confined to fhis area, Most of the shops and stores in Burlington derive
from 60% to 75% of their customers from this Zone of WMaximum Commercial
Influence,

Moving out from this central core we come to a much broader zone
stretching from just west of Aldershot, through Waterdown and eastwards to
Bronte, Over this area Burlington's commercial domination is less complete,
This large, semi=-circular belt may be referred to as the Zone of Medium
Commercial Influence, Most Burlington merchants derive anywhere from 5%
to 30% of their business from this zone, Certain specialty shops such as
the Small Types Children's Shop (30%), the Jewel Shop (20%) and J. Farrauto,
Custom Tailor (25%), find this zone an important commercial outlet. The

numerous plumbing, heating and building contractors of the town draw much
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business from this zone because of the widespread residential development,
The F. E, Ellerbeck Oil and Heating Company, for example, has a trade pattern
in which 15% of the work is done in Aldershot alone, and 10% in the area
between Port Nelson and Bronte, There seems to be some indication that the
eastern boundary of this Zone of Medium Influence is shifting slowly west-
wards, Mrs, A, H. Hucker (dry goods) and Mr, Haswell (home furnishings and
electrical apéliances) have both noticed a marked decline in the number of
Bronte customers, While the o0ld steady customers continue to return, very
few new customers from this area have been made, This is due perhaps to the
increased commercial pull of Oakville, which, like Burlington, is enjoying
a period of brisk growth,

Beyond these two zones of meximum and medium commercial influence,
we come to a zone where Burlington exercises only minor commercial influence,
It is very difficult to fix a boundary to this extensive Zone of Minor
Commercial Influence because, though many communities are served in this area,
they are not all served by the same commercial outlets, Generally speaking,
however, it can be said that Burlington merchants derive a relatively small
percentage of their business from this zone. This Zone of Minor Commercial
Influence stretches roughly from Hamilton on the west, northwards to Milton
and eastwards to Oakville, Communities in this zone served commercially by
Burlington include Millgrove, Milton, Cedar Springs, Lowville and Palermo,
These centres are located in what might be termed a transition zone; that is
a zone of communities whose shopping habits are influenced by more than one
commercial centre,

The average Burlington merchant sells from 1% to 5% of his goods
to people living in this outer zone, The Biller Vansickle Company (oil

distributors) derives shout 3% of its business from the Lowville-Milton Area.
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The Burlington Dry Cleaners make deliveries in Millgrove, Milton and Ogkville
which constitute about 5% of their totel business. Many people living in
this zone shop in Buclington because of special service or because of a
personal relationship with a store owner. This is true in the case of
Koop's Travel Service, Bill Burrow's Mens Wear and Lillies Hats.

A few merchants do have extensive business contékts in this Zone
of Minor Commercial Influence. The Parkdale Television and Appliance store
draws 20% of its business from Oakville, VWhile most of the commercial outlets
in the town have at least one or two steady customers in Hamilton, several,
such as the Roseland Flower Shop (25%) and Olson Sports and Cycle (10%),
have many customers in the city.

From the foregoing discussion it should not be assumed that this
retail trade pattern, with its three zones of varying intensity, represents
the limit of Burlington's sphere of commercial influence, Several shops in
the town, e. g. Lillies Hats and "The Twig" Antiques, attract customers from
as far away as Toronto, Barrie and Montrezl. In various lines of Commercial
activity, where the competition is very keen, such as in the automobile
business, sales area are very extensive, These factors should be kept in
mind when studying the retail trade pattern of Burlington, but any attempt

to represent them as being important to the general structure of Burlington!

m

trade pattern would be misleading,

INDUSTRIES
The Industrigl Function
No longer can Burlington be looked upon as purely a residential
town. The growth of industry within the past few decades has dispelled any

doubts which may have been held in some circles concerning the industrial
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possibilities of the town. There was a time however, when it appeared that
industry would never be able to emerge as an important element in an area
where agriculture had been for so long the dominant feature of the economy,
Early industry, for the most part, was merely a "by-product" of agriculture,
Flour mills and camning factories were needed by the local farmers to process
the products of the field and orchard. In some cases, these industries were
built and managed by the farmers themselves, During the middle of the
nineteenth century, the lumber industry was very important in Burlington,
but being dependent upon local supplies of timber, most of the planing mills
went out of business when the local stands were depleted,

At the turn of the twentieth century, and during the following
two decades, the changes which took place in Burlington's agriculture were
reflected in the growth of Burlington's industry. Many industries utilizing
the natural resources of the locel area were reorganized under new management,
Industry had to re=tool in order to face changing markets, changing production
methods and changing transportational facilities, Not only were old industries
revived but new industries appeared on fhe Burlington scene, industries which
were to give the town new blood and much needed industrial diversity,

Within the past eleven years, Burlington has seen the establish-
ment of seven modern diversified industries, giving the town a total of
fourteen plants (on January 1, 1957)., These industries teztify to the rapid
spread of urbanization in Burlington and have brought new prestige and
prosperity to the town.

Industrial Land Use
(See Figure 12)
Industry, generally speaking, is strategically placed in the town

so as to take advantage of rail and road facilities., The older industries of
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the town, with one exception, are concentrsted in two sreas, These two areas
are located first, in the south-western corner of the town, along the C.N.R.
tracks and second, in the north-western "Freeman" corner of Burlington. The
exception referred to is the Canadian Canners Company, Limited, which is
situated on Water Street at the foot of John Street.

In the last few years a new industrial subdivision has opened up
along Graham's Lane and most of the newer industries have located here, The
only exception to this trend is the Jones Tool and Machine Company, which is
located on Junction Street.

The Industries of Burlington
(See Appendix C=3)

Todayl, there are fourteen industries in Burlington, Their
locations are shown in Figure 1l4.

One of the oldest industries in Burlington is the Canadian Canners
Company, Limited, located on Water Street, which took over from the old
Burlington Canning Company in 1910, This company began operations originally
to take advantage of the produce offered by the rich local agricultural area,
The products of this industry are tomato ketchup, maraschino cherries, olives
and spaghetti, the first being the most important, The tomatoes are grown
locally and are brought to the plant by truck., Olives are imported from
Spain and cherries from Italy. These imported commodities are brought across
the ocean by ship and thence to the Burlington plant by rail transport.
Distribution of the manufactured products is handled almost entirely by truck,
Truck transport tends to be cheaper and faster, This latter item is of
special importance when perishable goods are being transported, The consumer
market is mainly local, although the national market is important and some
of the company's products find their way into the United States_and Europe,

1, Januery 1, 1957.
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About half of the staff is female and most of them live nearby, During the
canning season large numbers of partrtime helpers are employed.

The town has a second canning company, Tip Top Canners Limited,
which is located on the Queen Elizabeth Way at Freeman, In 1925, Tip Top
Canners bought out the Hyslop Canning Company., The main products of the firm
are canned asparagus, raspberries, strawberries, peaches, plums and apples.
Tins end pails of jam and marmalade are also produced, The fruit is brought
in by truck from a sixty mile radius. Most Tip Top goods are sold within a
100 mile radius of Hamilton and distribution is handled in the following
manner: 60% by truck, 20% by rail and 20% by'lake boat. In the past few
years, some jam and marmalade shipments have been made to England and Scotland,
While the local district is rapidly declining as a source area of raw materials
for the company, the availability of cheap labour and abundant power, the
large local copsumer market and the excellent transportation facilities more
than compensate for this disadvantage.

Perhaps the best known industry in Burlington is the A, S. Nicholson
and Son Lumber Company which was formed in 1912, The present plant is located
on Ontario Street, west of the railway tracks. The company also has a lumber
storage yard on Maple Avenue, Business mushroomed during the First World Var,
on govermment contracts, and expanded further in 1936, The company is the
largest manufacturer of windows in Canada, and also sells building materials
and hardware. The firm has recently purchased a piece of property on the Queen
Elizabeth Way, Here a plant to manufacture wooden trusses will soon be built.
The wood and lumber supplies used by the company are brought in by rail from
as far west as British Columbia and also from Northern Ontario, Hardware goods
are purchased from Hemilton and Toronto, Nearly 90% of the products are sold

to Ontario buyers with Burlington wholesale and retail outlets comprising 22%
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of this figure, The rest is distributed throughout the western provinces
and Quebec, Of all the locating factors, the proximity to markets is most
important, The firm is a large employer of labour (250 to 275 people) and
has its own fleet of trucks.

The Halliday Company, occupying thirteen acres of land on Maple
Avenue, just north of the Nicholson planf, has been in operation since 1916,
The company handles a great variety of building materials, lumber, hardware
and prefasbricated summer homes, The lumber is purchased from British Columbia
and Northern Ontario sources, while the hardware items are obtained from
Southern Ontario manufacturers. The mein markets lie in Southern Ontario.
The distribution of company products deperds upon the proxiﬁity of the plant
to the areas where sales are made., Local deliveries are made by truck in most
cases (the company has its own fleet), while distant and isolated customers
are served mainly by rail transport. Employment varies from 200 to 225 people,
of whom many are of foreign extraction,

The Glover Basket Company, & subsiduary of Oakville Wood Specialties,
Limited, is another legacy of the past. The plant is located on upper Brant
Street at Freeman., The originagl W. T, Glover Manufacturing Company was bought
out by J. M, Wallace of Ogkville in 1918 and the Glover Basket Company was
formed. The company today manufactures fruit and vegetsble baskets and some
wooden meat containers, Hardwood logs are obtained from Northern Ontario
sources and steel wire from the Steel Company of Canada, at Hamilton, 60% of
the products are shipped by truck and 40% by rail, the main market stretching
from the Niagara Peninsula to Montreal, One interesting point about this firm
is that 95% of its machinery is run by steam power. While the immediate
Burlington area is no longer a major market for the firm's fruit and vegetable

baskets, the industry is by no means dead. New markets are opening up and new



One of Burlington's mejor industries,
A, S, Nicholson and Son, Limited,
on Ontario Street.

One of Burlington's smallest industries, the

Frank Tool and Die Company on Graham's Lane,

In the background is the Hercules Powder Company
(Canada) Limited, at Freeman,
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lines of products are constantly being developed.

The town has two chemical companies, both located along the C.N.R.
line at Freeman, The older, the Niagesrs Brand Spray Company, started business
in 1909 and today produces various forms of insecticides, fungicides and herb-
jcides. D.,D.T. and similar chemicals are used in the manufacture of these
products, The raw chemicals, containers and lebels are purchased from an area
with a redius of 100 miles from the plant, Hamilton and Toronto are the main
suppliers., This company sells most of its products in Windsor, Cornwall,
Meaford and the Niagara Peninsula, Most of the bulky raw materisls are brought
in by rail while the smeller items are brought in meinly by truck. Distributiom
of mamufactured products is handled by both rail (80%) and truck (20%). The
future lqoks extremely bright for the Nisgers Brand Spray Company as expansion
has taken place in the past and will undoubtedly continue in the fiture.

The second chemica; company is the Hercules Powder Company, which
commenced operations in 19133 The major products of this company are sizing,
a heavy chemical used in the manufacturing of paper, and various types of foam
‘ killers for use in paper mills, Resin is imported from the Southern United
States, soda ash from Windsor, and wax from the British American and Imperial
0il refineries, Nearly 90% of the raw materials are brought in by rail, The
consumer market lies in the pulp and paper producing areas of Ontario, Quebec,
New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and, to a certain extent, Manitoba. 90% of the
manufactured products are distributed by rail and 10% by truck., The present
and future success of this industry is largely dependent upon rapid and
abundant transportation facilities,

At the conclusion of the Second World War, three new industries
loceted in Burlington, Of these the Jones Tool and Machine Company was the

first, established in 1946. The present plant, occupying a space thirty feet
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by fifty feet, on Junction Street, was built in 1949. This company does
general machine shop work, manufacturing precision tools and dies. The
major markets lie in Burlington, Hamilton and Oakville. The company also
has a few customers in Toronto and Tillsonburg, The materials used in pro-
duction consist of different types of steel procured from Hamilton: and
Toronto plants, The distribution of materials and products is handled
exclusively by railway express and truck transport. This industry is the
town's smallest, from the standpoint of numbers employed, having a total
employment of three skilled machinists, The location of the plant is ideal
as there are many plants in the Toronto - Hamilton area which require machine
tools of the type manufactured by this company,

In 1948, the Susan Shoe Company moved into Burlington, occupying
the site of a wartime parachute factory. This industry produces a variety
of shoes which are sold in every province in Canada to special agencies, such
as the T. Eaton Company, Limited and Simpson Sears Limited. The distribution
of the shoes is handled by railway express and freight. As the sales are
quite scattered, fhere is little distribution by truck. The raw materials,
consisting of leather smd various fabries for lining, along with rubber for
soling, are purchased from Oshawa, Barrie, Kitchener and Toronto, while many
lines of buckles, lacing and ornaments, ete. are pprchased from the United
States, One of the most noticesble characteristics of the labour force is
that a great percentage of the help is Furopean, half of whom cannot speak
English, This industry is an exceptionally heavy user of electric power,
since many power sewing machines and much shoe making equipment are employed.
This company truly represents the recent rapid growth of industry in Burlington
for, since 1948, the company has more than doubled in size and output,

In 1949 the Burlington Brick Company, largely because of the post
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war building boom in the Burlington district, established itself at the '
northern end of the town, 6ff Brant Street, This industry is situated on a
one and one quarter acre site bordering the C.N.R. tracks, The company
manufactured  concrete bricks which are sold to Burlington, Toronto and
Oakville buyers. The raw materials (sand, cement, water-proofing, iron oxide
and colouring) are pﬁrchased from suppliers in Freelton, Belleville, Port
Colborne and Woodstock, The manufactured bricks are distributed exclusively
by truck, Suceess or failure for an industry of this type hinges on transport-
ation costs, Many brick companies, while perhaps situated near large sand
pits, are often handicapped by isolation from the major markets. The
Burlington Brick Company, however, is fortunate in being located in the
heart of an erea where commercial, industrial and especially residential
construction are very pronounced,

The opening of new land for industrial sites in Burlington has
led to the establishment of four new industries since 1953, In that year
the Francis Shaw Company (of Canada), Limited, a subsidiary of a British
company in Manchester, was established on Grgham's Lane. Machinery for
processing rubber and plastics is manufactured by this Company. Steel,
electrical equipment, castings, forgings, nuts, bolts, etec. are purchased
mainby from Hamilton and Toronto. They are brought in entirely by truck,
The consumer market, at present, is entirely provincial due mainly to the
newness of the company in Canada. There are hopes for a national and even
continental market in the near future., While a spur line of the C,N.R, will
eventually be constructed to serve the plant, all products are presently being
brought in by truck, By locating in Burlington this company hoped to take
advantage o